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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Hom Lake, Mississippi

Report on (he Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. the business-type aciivities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Horn Lake,
Mississippi’s basie financial stalements as listed in the table of contents. ’

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Staterments

Management is responsible for the preparation and [air presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control refevant 1o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statemenls that are free from
material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibifity is o Sxpress opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrodler General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ohlain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis are free from
material misstalgment.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence abour the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures setected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the [inancial siatements, whether due to fraud or ercor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal contro! relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the Ginancial statsments in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audii also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as

evalualing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient aud appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions,
Opinions

Tn our opinion. the financial statements referved to above present fairly, in ali material respects, the respective financiai position
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2016, and the respective changes fn financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with sccounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.
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Orther Maliers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting vrinciples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis {pages 3-13) budgetary comparison schedule {page 44), the schedule of the city’s proportionate share of the net
pension Hability and the schedule of city’s contributions (pages 45-46) with accompanying noles (page 47) be presented o
suppement ke basic financial statements. Such information, although not & part of the basic fnancial statements, is requived
by the Governmenlal Accounting Seindards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for piacing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses lo our inquirjes. the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we oblained during our audit af the bagic financial stalements. We do nof express an opinfon or provide any
assurance on the information because ihe limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 1o express an opinion
ar pravide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was condugted for the purpose of forming opinions an the financial stalements that collectlvely comprise the City of
Horn Lake, Mississippi’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by Title2 U.8. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cest Principles, and Audit Requirements for Faderal Awards and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the respansibility of management and was derived from and relate directly 10
the underiying acrounting and other records used (o prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected o the auditing procedures apptied in the audit of the basic financial siatements and cestain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underiying acconnling and other records used to prepare
the basic financial stalements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards gererally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial siatements as a whole.

The Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials has not been subjected (o the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an ppinion or provide any assurance on it.

Orther Reporting Required by Governpient AAuditing Standards

In accordance with Governmen! Audiiing Standards, we bave also issued our reporl dated August 11, 2017, on our
consideration of the Ciry of Horn Lake, Mississippt’s internal control over financial reporting and on our lests of its complinnce
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not o provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporfing or on compliance, That report is an integral put of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s
lnternal contro} aver financial reporting and compliance.

T
O, Yoy 4 &
F.O. Givens & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
August 11, 2017
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City of Horn Lake, Mississippi
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For Year Ended September 30, 2016
Unaudited

This discussian and analysis of the City of Horh Lake's financial performance provides an overall review of the City's
financial activities for the year ended september 30, 2016. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at
the City's financial performance as a whole. Readers should also review the basic financial statements to enhance
their understanding of the City's financial performance.

Financiai Highlights
Key financiat highlights for 2016 as compared to 2015 were as follows.

Total net position decreased from $(5,283,376) o 5{5,213,962)

Total labllities and deferred inflows increased from 362,506,461 to 563,311,748

Total agsets and defarred outflows of goveramental activities increasad from $43,286,155 10 $41,380,395
Total assets and deferred outfiows of business-type activities increased from $15,936,930 to 516,617,391

Using This Annual Financial Report

This annual report consists of a series of flnancial statements and notes to thosé statements. These statements
are organized so the reader can understand the City of Horn Lake's performance as a whole. The statements then
proceed to provide an increasingly detailed took at specific financial conditions.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activitles provide information about the activities of the whole
City, presenting both an aggregate view of the City’s finances and a long-term vlew of those assets. Malor fund
financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services
were financed In the short-term as well as funds that remain for future spending. The fund financlal statements
also lock at the City’s most significant funds with.all other non-major funds presented in an aggregate column.

Reporting on the City of Horn Lake as a Whaole

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Actlvities

While this document contains information about the funds used by the City to provide services to our citizens, the
view of the City as a whale looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, “How did we do financially
during 2016?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities answer this question,

These statements include all assets and Habiities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting
used by the private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes info account all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net positioh and the change in that position. This change in position is
important because it tells the reader whether, for the City as a whole, the financial position of the City has
improvad or diminished. However, in evaluating the overall position of the City, non-financiat information such as
changes in the City’s tax base and the condition of the City’s capital assets wilt aiso need to be evaluated,



City of Horn Lake, Mississippi
WManagement’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Unaudited

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, all of the Ciy's activities are reported as
Governmental Activities, which include all of the City’s services such as pofice, fire, administrative, public services
and all oiher departments. The business-type activities of the City of Horn Lake consist of the City's Water and
Sewer System, also known as the ULty Department. This is known as the Proprietary Fund. The City of Horn Lake
has no component units,

Reporting on the City of Horn Lake’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial statements

The analysls of the City's major funds begins on page 17. Fund financial reports provide detailed information
about the City's maior funds, Basad on restrictions on the use of monies, the City has established many funds,
which account for the multitude of services provided (o the City's residents. However, these fund financial
statements focus on the City’s most significant funds. in the case of the City of Horn Lake, the City's major funds
are the General, Debt Service, and Utility Funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements, However, unlike the government-wide financizal statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-terrm financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the Informatlon presented for governmental funds with simiiar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financia statements, By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balances and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison hetween governmental funds and governmental activities.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Horn Lake maintains an enterprise fund that is used to report business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements, The City uses enterprise fund accounting in order to account for the Utlity
System Fund. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financiai statements can be found on page 21.
Operating revenues of the System are utilized to fund the operation and maintenance expenses and dabt service,

The City of Horn Lake as @ Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position looks at the City asa whaole. Table 1 provides a summary of the City’s net
position for 2016 eompared to 2015, Table 2 shows the changes in net position for the 2015 year.



Table 1
Statement of Net Position

Assets
Current and otherassets
Capital assets, net

Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred amount on refunding

. Deferred outflows-pensions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liahilities

Current Habiijttes
Ltong-term Hiabilities
Tatal Liahifities

Beferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred revenue

Deferred inflows-pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of debt

Restricied
Unrestricted
Totzl Net Assets

City of Horn Lake, Mississippi
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For Year Ended September 30, 2016

Unaudited

2016 2015

Government Business-type Governmeant Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities

9,978,527 3,784,539 10,115,221 2,543,882
26,935,334 12,084,639 27,630,947 12,566,585
36,917,861 15,869,178 37,746,168 15,110,467
387,712 348,335 448,507 394,268
4,074,822 394,878 3,091,480 317,981
4,462,534 748,213 3,539,987 712,248
4,119,09% 1,417,593 5,120,838 1,203,137
34,624,602 14,134,069 34,244,254 14,120,991
38,743,657 15,551,662 38,365,092 15,324,128
6,854,649 - 6,750,102 -
1,838,268 183,472 867,613 93,526
8,832,917 183,472 7,717,715 99,526
10,027,249 (458,617} 7,655,685 {320,470)
92,330 423,991 72,437 748,524
(16,315,798} 917,883 (13,524,774} 85,222
{6,126,219) 882,257 (5,796,652} 513,276

In connection with the implementation of new standards on accounting and finandal reporting for
pensions in 2015, management presents thefollowing additional information:

Total unrestricted net position {deficit)

tessiunrestricted deficit in net porision resulting from implementation of
GASB No. 68 and 71 in previous year

Unrestricted net position, exclusive of the net pension liabitity

$ {15,397,915)

21,434,996

5 6,037,081




City of Horn Lake, Mississippi
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For Year Ended September 30, 2016

Unaudited

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by $1,009,160. Cash and cash equivalents Increased by
$545,503, excluding restricted cash, The following table, Table 2, presents a summary of the changes In net
position for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016.

Table 2
Changes in Net Posltion

Revenues

Program Revenues:

Charges for sarvices

Operating grants and cantributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total Program Revenues

General Revenues:
Taxes

Other revenues
Transfers

Total General Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenses

General government
Pulytic safety

Public works

Cuitural & recreational
Economic develaopment
Interest

Pension

Utiiity depariment

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Posttion, Beginning of year
Prior perfod adjustment

Net Pasitlon, beginning of year,
as restated

Net position - End of year

20186 2015

Governmeant Business-type Government Business-type

Activities Activities Activities Activities
5 1,833,391 $ 4,515,206 5 2,031,958 5 4,394,495
224,773 - 251,016 -
) - - ) - 118,589
2,058,164 4 515 208 2,282,974 4,513,085
12,551,498 - 12,110,426 -
2,267,916 1,195 2,292,736 15,978
400,000 {400,000} 400,060 (400,000}
15,218,414 {398,805) 14,803,162 {383,022}
17,277,578 4,116,401 17,686,136 4,130,063
2,570,385 - 2,475,918 -
9,144,060 - 8,419,746 -
2,604,389 - 3,139,863 -
1,075,063 - 1,162,867 -
367,358 - 337,281 -
502,060 - 939,654 -
1,722,630 147,922 1,757,450 180,766
- 3,589,498 - 3,448,533
17,985,345 3,747,420 18,231,779 3,629,299
S {707,767) ) 368,581 S (3,145,643 S 500,764
(5,796,652) 513,276 9,452,005 1.463,117
308,200 - {14,103,104) (1,450,6085)
{5.488,452) 513,276 (4,651,008) 12,512
3 [(£,198,219) 3 882,257 S (5,796,652} 3 513,276




City of Horn Lake, Mississippl
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Far the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Unaudited

Governmental Activities

Several revenues fund the City's governmental activities. The largest funding source, property tax revenue,
accounted for 57,071,187, or 46.5% of general revenues; sales fax revenue accounted for $4,785,339, or 31.4% of
general revenues. Fines of $1,119,644 accounted for 7.4% of general revenues, and franchise taxes of $694,972
accounted for 4.6% of general revenues,

The remaining 10.1% of general revenues was comprised of miscellaneous revenues and transfers,

Total genetal revenues from governmental activities increased from $14,803,162 in 2015 to $15,219,414, or 2.8%.
Major expense activities included public safety expenditures accounting for 50.8% of total program expenses, and
general government expenses accounting for 14.3% of total program expenses. Although the City has worked
very hard on increasing its tax base by being proactive with new businesses and reducing cests department by
department, we still strive to provide better service at a lower cost per man-hour. The ability of the City to
continue 1o provide quality services without tax increases rests on the City management’s ability to keep these
tosts in line.

Business-type Activities

Business-typé activities increased the City's net position by $368,981. Operating revenues from the utility system
fund totaled $4,515,206 in 2016, an increase of 2.4% from 2015 operating revenues of $4,408,923.

Expenses of the utility fund increased by 3.3% in 2016, totaling $ 3,747,420 In 2016 and-$3,629,299 in 2015.

The City's Funds
Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on batances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be usefulin
evaluating a City's near-term financing requirements. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue,
debt service, and capitat projects funds,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for gevernmental funds with similar Information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's hear-term financing decisions. The "Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet” and the “Governmental Eunds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes th Fund Balances”
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governumental funds and governmental activities.
These reconciliations are on pages 18 and 20, respectively.

The City maintains individual goveramental funds in accordance with the Mississippi Municipal Audit and
Accounting Guide issued by the Mississippi Cffice of the State Auditor. Infermation is presented separately in the
governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

10



City of Horn Lake
Management’s Discusslon and Analysis
For the Year Ended Saptember 30, 2016

Unaudited

Changes in Fund Balances for all major funds. All other nen-major funds are combined together and presented in
these reports as other governmental funds,

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 19 of this report, it is important
to realize that ail short-term notes issued by the Clty are recognized in the current perlod as short-term iiabilities,
and once bonded by the City they become long-term general obligation debt of the City.

Proprietary Funds

The net posttion of the proprietary funds at the-end of fiscal year 2016 totaled $882,257 which represents a
$368,981 increase from 2015,

Genearal Fund Budgeting Highlights

The City's budget is prepared according to Mississippl Law and is based on accounting for certain transactions on a
basis of cash receipts, dishursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General fund.

During the course of 2016, the City amended Its general fund budget. All recommendations for a budget change
come from the Department Heads to the City Clerk. The Board of Aldermen of the City does not allow budget
changes that modify totals within departments without Board.approval. With the General Fund supporting many
of the City's major activities such as police, fire, ambulahcs, street and park depariments, as wall as legisiative,
judicial and executive activities, the General Fund is monitored closely, looking for possible revenue shortfalls or
overspending by individual departments. For the general fund, original budgeted revenues were $14,641,505;
amended budget amounts were $14,395,452 and actual revenue coliections-budgetary basis were

514,151,443,

.Capital Assets and Long-Term Obligaticns
Tahle 3

Capital Assets {Net of Depreciation)

2016 2015
Government Business-type Governrment Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities

Land S 3,690847% 5 28,225 S 3,668,471 3 28,225
Buildings & improvements 311,018,977 151,001 11,018,977 151,001
Eguipment & Vehicles 8,126,491 389,128 7,736,340 389,128
Construction in Progress 474,930 912,514 300,039 374,900
Infrastructure 27,414,029 20,199,935 27,414,029 20,142,993
Accumuiated Depreciatian (23,754,564} (9,596,164) {22,507,909) (8,930,434}
Total Capital Assats, net % 26,939,334 $ 12,084,639 S 27,630,947 $ 12,155,813

11



City of Horn Lake
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Unaudited

Long-Term Ohligations
Tahle 4

Outstanding Notes and Long-Term Obligations at Year End

2016 2015

Governmental Activities:

General obligation bonds $ 12,180,000 $ 12,920,000
Special assessiment honds 3,980,000 4,590,000
Loans payable 245,628 1,766,532
Leases payable 788,349 574,017
Bond premium 138,648 162,977
Rond discount (32,798) (38,264)
Deferred loss (387,712} (448,507)
Compensated absances 280,830 289,613
Total $ 17,192,945 S 19,816,368

Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable

$ 10,415,000

$ 10,670,000

Loans payable 2,372,318 1,990,356
Bond premium 105,273 210,195
Deferred loss (348,335) {394,268)
Compensated abhsences 33,117 36,117

Toial

¢ 12,577,373

5 12,512,400

During 2016, the Clty issued $2,695,000 in general obligation and speciat assessment combined refunding bonds to
advance refund 52,510,000 of 2005 special assessment refunding bonds. The refunding will reduce the City's debt
service payrents over the next 15 years by almost $325,495. Meore detalled information about the City’s long-
term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Economic Conditions

The City of Horn Lake is experiencing new development, new business, and expansion in the new fiscal budget
year. First with new developments is the Real Estate International group out of Destin Flosida, This project is
underway with a $3,2 million cost for first phase of the old Elvis Presley Circle G Ranch, which is focated at the
corner of Hwy 301 and Hwy 302. Project leaders that have worked on former Disney projects antlclpate 160,000
visitors annually will visil the development after completion of the first phase and up to 400,000 annually will visit
after additional phases are added. The Circle G Ranch will place Horn Lake on the map internationally with the
restoration of the Elvis Honeymoon cottage, Stables/Fouestrian programs, wedding chapel, shopping, hotels,

12



City of Horn take, Mississipp
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For Year Ended September 30, 2016
Unaudited

housing, senior living, and other amenliies with outdoor music around a lake that would come first. The second
hew business devetopraent is the CORES group out of Atlanta Georgia is undarway with Horn Lake Business Center.
The new Business Center will consist of § warehouse/manufacturing buiidings totaling 2.7 milion square feet. The
CORES project has an estimated cost of $120 million to build and supply the 5 new warehouse/manufacturing
buttdings.

Also there are several other projects that wili help huild a better ecenomy throughout the City of Harn Lake. These
projects Include the expansion of Rite Hite Intarnational Dock Door Safety Systems and Ground Support Specialist,
LLC. The City of Horn Lake is also committed to providing all public services needed to support this growth in each

fiscal year,

Contacting the Clty’s Finance Department
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with a general overview

of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions
about this report or need additionai Information, contact the City Clerk at 662-342-3488,

13
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPE
Statement of Net Position

September 34, 2016
Governmental Boginess-Type
Atlivities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaleats ¥ 501,456 3 2271022 $ 2778478
investments 103,793 - 103,793
Accmmts receivable, net of atlowance for
doubtful accounts of $2,564,956 and $68,360 905,516 787,641 1,693,157
Intergovermeniai receivable 517,848 317,848
Property taxes receivable 6,912,775 - 6,912,775
Prepaid expense 34,548 293,690 348,238
Inveniory . 2,195 2,195
Restzicted ussols:
Cash in bank - 423.991 423,991
Property held for sale 082,591 - 982,591
Capital assels, net
of accumulmed depreciation 26,939,334 12,084,039 39,023,973
Total Assets 36,017,861 15,869,178 _ 52,787.039
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refundiag 337212 348.335 756,047
Deferred ontllows reluied to pensions 4,074,822 399,878 4.474,700
Totnl Deferred Quifiows of Resources 4,462,534 748,213 3,210,747
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 624,693 140,414 1,065,107
Accrued expenses 168,931 14,771 183,702
Customer deposiis 299,408 339,352 638,757
Other deposits 135,734 - 135734
Accrued interest payable 168,909 145,328 314.237
Uncamed revenue - 16,491 i6,491
Long-tera labilities ‘
Diue within one year;
Capital debr 24214723 761,237 3,182,660
Dué in more than one year:
Capitat debl 14,878,374 12,131,354 27,009,728
MNon-eapilal debi 280,830 33,117 313,947
Net pension talsility 19,465,398 1,969 598 21,434,996
Towl Liabilitigs 38,743,647 15,551,662 54,295,359
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable reverme-property tes 6,894,649 - 6,894,649
Deieered inflows-pensions 1,038,268 183,472 2,121,740
Tolal Deferred Inflows of Resowrees 8,832,917 ) 183,472 9,016,389
NET POSITION
et investment in capital assels 10027249 {459,617) 0,567,632
Reatrioted for:
Culture and reoreation 92,330 “ 92,330
Debi service - 423,961 423,991
Unrestricled {16,315,798) 917,883 (15,397,913)
Total Net Position § 16,196,219) 3 882,257 3 {5,313,962}

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the {inancial statements.
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Governmentsl Activities
Crenerad govemnent
Publie safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Eeonomie development
Interest on long-tenn debl
Peasion cxpense

Total govermneetal activities

Rusinéss-Typs Aclivities
Vility
Pension oxpense
Tolal Basiness-type activitdes

Toia! goveramen

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPP

Statement of Aclivities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Froprn Revennes

MNet {Expenses) Revennie and

Changes in Net Position

Operating Capitsl
Charges for Granty gud Granits and Gavernmental Business-Type
Lxpenses Serviges Contributions Contributions Activities Activities ‘Fatal
2,570,385 M - $ - (2,570,285)  § . $ (2,570,385}
9,144,060 285 688 21,773 - (8,633,599 - (8,633,599}
2,604,380 1,399 439 - . (1,204,950} - (1,204,950}
1,673,063 148,264 - . (926,799} . (926,799}
367358 - - - (367,358) - (367,358}
502 4160 - - (502,060) - (502,060)
1,723,530 - - - (1.722,030) - (1,722,000}
17 985,345 3,833,39] 224,773 (15,927,180 115,927,180
1,599,408 4,515,204 - - - 515,708 915,708
147,932 - - - - {147,938 {147,922
§.747,430 4,315,206 . . - 767,786 761,786
§ 21,732,765 3 6,348,567 £ 2T 3 - (15,927,181 161,786 {15,159,393)
Generdl Revenus:

Property axes 1471187 - TOT1 187

Franchise iaxes 694,972 - 594,912

Sales 4783339 - 4,785.310

Intergovmmental 347,504 347,504

Livease & permita 204,001 - 264,001

Fines 1,119,644 - £119,644

Penuliy and interest 43956 - 40,956

Penally and interost 19,162 - 19,162

nterest 4,601 1,195 5,250

Mivcetimeous 671,105 - 671,165

Gain {Loss) on disposal of assels (138,547 - {138,511

Translfes 450,000 {400,000y -

Totul Genesa) Revenues & Tronsfors 15,219,414 (398.803) 14,820,609

Change in Neg Pogition AT L)) 368,984 {338,786}

Net Position: - Beginning of Year (5,796.6523 314276 {5,283,376)

Prior pegiod adjustment 308,200 - 305,200

Myt Position - End of Year (6,196.219; 3 862,257 ¥ {5.3i3962)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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ASBETS

Cash and cash eguivalenis
Investments

Accounts receivable(net of ailowance for

wieolleclibles of $2.564,956
Intergovernmenial receivabie
Prepaid ftems
Property {ax receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accoumts payable
Accrued expenses
Other Deposits

Totel Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSESSIPPR

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30,2016

__Major Funds

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resowrces

EUND BALANCES

Morspendable:
Prepaid items
Restricted:
Culfure and recreation
Debt service
Assigned:
Economic Development
Unassigned

Totat Fund Bulances

Totai Liabilities and Fund Balances

(ther Total
General Debt Servive Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 7,990 ¥ - k3 493,466 $ 501,456
103,793 - - 103,791
Y05.316 - - 905,516
489,714 - 28,134 317,848
- 3:4.548 - 54,548
3,975,817 2,785,217 154,741 6,912,773
s 5,482,830 2,839,765 $ 673,341 5 8,095,936
3 263,821 560,702 § 170 h 924,693
168,933 - - £68,933
435,139 435,139
967,893 560,702 170 1,528,765
3,084,060 2,759,995 149,683 6,894,649
3,984,969 2,759,695 149,685 6,894,649
- 34,548 - 54,548
- - ’ 92,330 92,330
- - 431,156 431,156
529,968 (535.480) . [5,512)
520048 _ (480,932) 523,486 572,522
5 5,482,830 $ 2,839,765 3 §73,341 b 8,995,936

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the {inancial statements.



CITY OF HORN LAKE , MISSISSIPPY
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Nef Pogition
September 30, 2016

Total Fund Brlance - Governmental Funds § 572,522

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statoment of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmenial activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds, net of nccumulaled depreciation

of § 23,794,564, 26,939,336

Deferred outflows of resousces related to pension reported in governmental
getivities is not a financial resource and therefore {s not reported in the funds 4,074,822

Other long Lgrm assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the Aimds, These assets consist of the following:

Tax forfejted land ("investnants") 982,591
Deferred amount on refunding 387,712

Deferred inflows of resources related o pensions reported in governmental ‘
activities is not a financial resowrce and therefore is not reported in the funds {1,938,268)

Long-term liabitities are not due and payable in the current year and therefore

are not reported in the funds (37,046,025

Aceruet intersst payable is not due and paysble in the current period and

therefore is not reported tn the funds (168,909
Net Position of Governmental Activities 5 (6,196,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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REVENUES

General property taxes
Franchise Taxes

Sales Taxes

Penalty and interest
Licenses and permils
[ntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines

interest

Miscellangous

Total Reveniies

EXPENIMTURES

(reneral povennment
Pablic safety
Public works
Caituere and recreation
Economic development
Debt serviee:
Principal
Intcrest
Bond issue costsfagent foes
Capital Quilay

Total Expenditures
Excess {Debciency) of Revenues

Over {Under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES

Rents

Grant revenue

Sale of asgets

Iterfond fransfers

Lunse procesds

Total Oher Financing Sources
Ngt Change in Fund Belances
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

The accompanying notcs are an integrat part of the Nnancial statements,

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fand Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Eaded September 30, 2016

Other Total
Genersd Debt Service (Governmentsl Goverminental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
§ 4,905,626 § 2,020,203 143,364 $ 7,674,187
694,972 - - 694,972
4491577 - 293,662 4,785,339
40,956 - - 40,956
204,001 - 204,001
147,504 - - 347 504
1,833,363 N - £,833,301
1,119,644 - - 1,119,644
4,601 C o - 4,601
562,353 78:212 - 64,3635
14,204,719 2,098.413 439,026 16,742,160
2454851 - 2.454,851
8,792,746 - 8,792,149
2,158,911 - - 2,158,911
166,438 - 125471 391,909
206,766 - 160,392 167,358
166,731 2,850,600 - 3,216,731
15471 475,218 - 490,689
- Lo - 1,100
408,503 - - 409,593
15,171,510 3,326,318 286,063 18,743,891
(966,791) (1,227,903} 152,963 (2,041,731)
19,162 - - 19,162
224,113 - - 224,773
197,129 - - 197,729
398635 340,335 - 400,000
564,159 - 560,159
1,061,688 340,135 - 1,401,823
94,897 (837.768) 152,963 {639,908}
435,671 406,836 370,523 ],2&,430
$ 329,968 $ (480,932} 523,486 3 572,522
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPY
Reconciliation of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Government Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances ~ Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmmental funds repart capital outlays as expenditures. However,

in the Statements of Activities, the cost of those assets is aflocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which depreciation ($1,384,182) exceeded capital outlays (5720,615).

Debit proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,

but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Stateraent of Net Position.
Repayment of debt principal Is an expenditure in the governmental funds,

but the repayment redices long-term labilities in the Statement of Net Position,
This Is the amount by which proceeds ($560.139) in the current period
exceeded repyments ($3,216,731),

Under the modified acerual basis of accounting ased it the govertmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid
with expendable available financial resources. However, in the Statement of
Activities, which is presented on the acerual basis, expenses and Habilfties are
reported regardless of when financial resourcas are avajlable. In addition,
inigrest on long-term debt i recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when due, rather than ag it acerues. Thus, the change in net position
differs from the change in fund baiances by a combination of the following
items:

Accrued inferest on debt

Gainfloss on disposal of assets

Pension expense

Compensated absences

Bond premium, discount and deferred loss amortization expense

Change in Nef Position of Govermmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(663,567)

2,636,572

30,53

(336,246)

(1,722.030)
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$_ (09.767)



ASSETS
Current Assels

Cash and cash equivalents

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSIGSIPPY
Statement of Net Position
Proprictary Fouds
September 30, 2016

Accounts receivable, ngt of allowance

for doubtiitl accounts of $68,300
Intergovernmental receivables

inveninry
Prepaid Hxpenses

Total Current Assets

Nouneurrent Assefs
Restricted cash

Capitsl assets, net of accumulajed depreciation

Total Nencurvent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFOWS OF RESOURCEY

Deferred amount on refunding
Delferred onfflows-pensions

Total Deferved Outilows of Resources

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Carrenl Linbilities
Accounts payable
Aceried expenses

Accrued inlerest payable

Uneamed revenug
Customer deposits
Capital debt

Total Current Liabliities

Noneurrent Liahilitics

Capital debt
MNon-vapitat debt

Net pension Habiity
Folal Neacorres! Liabilities

Total Liabifitiey

DEFERRLED INFEOWS OF RESOURCES

Deforred inflows-pensions

Total Deferved Fnfiows of Resources

Net investient in capital assels

Restricted for:
Deht service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Litility
Funrd

3 2217022
787.641

2195
293,690
3,360,548

423,991
12,084,039
12,508,630

[SNPUSEUUntn okh fhns otnhdi

15,860,178

348335
399,878

R b

748,213

140,414
14,771
145.328
16,491
339,352
761,237
1,417,593

12131354
33117
1,969,398

£4,134,069

15,551,662

133,472

143,472

(459617

423,991
917,883

& 8957

The accompanying notes are an integral parf-of the linancial statements,
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPT
Statement of Revenues, Kxpenses, and Changes in Nef Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Utility
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $  4,515206
Total Operating Revenues 4,515,206
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 837,588
Pension expense 147,922
Depreciation and amortization 710,334
Supplies 95,180
Maintenance and other 284,118
Water and sewer system management 1,246,247
Total Operating Expenses 3,321,389
Operating income 1,193,817
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 1,195
Interest expense (254,222)
Miscellaneous expense (3,284)
Bond issue cost _(128,525)
Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (424,836)
Net Income (L.oss) Before Transters 768,981
Interfund transfers (400,000)
Change in Net Position 168,981
Net Position - Beginning of Year 313,276
Net Position - End of Year . 3 382,_257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPE
Statement of Cash Flows
Progrietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash recelved from customers
Cash payments for goods and serviees
Cash peyments 1o eniployees
Nel Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activitses

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interfund Activity
Net Cash Provided By (1Ised Tn} Noncapilal Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTTVITIRS

Paymenis for capital aequisitions
Custemer deposits
Progeeds of Jong-term debt
Principai payments on debt
Interest payments on debi
Payments inl commection with debt issuance
Net Cagh Provided By {(Used In) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS TROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

interest on investmens
Net Cash Provided By {Used In) Investing Adtivilies

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cush Equivalenis

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents-End of Year

Reconeilintion of Qperating Income to Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operating Activities
Cperating tncome

Adjustments te recongile operating income 10 et cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amoriizstion
{Increase) decresss in customer receivablas
{Increase) decrease in other recefvables
(Increase) decrense in prepaid cxpenses
{Increase} decrease in deferred ouiflows
Ingrease (Jecrease) in accounts payable
Inerease (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decraase) in net pension liability
fnorease {decrease) in accrued expenses
Inorease {decrease) o deferred inflows
Tosi adjustinents
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Utitity

Fund

$ 4,465,192
11,691,208)
(£34,588)

(638,624)
{638,624)

(594.556)
10427
3.072.871
{3.151,634)
{338.875)
(185,000}
(1,186,767}

1,193
1193

115,200

o LSESBIS
$ 2,701,013

$_L193817

710,334
(50,374}
€138,264)
106,107
(35964)
67.676
(3,000)
145871
{40,753)
83.946
745,579
§ 1939396

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial staterents.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPY
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

NOTE A -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Statement

The City of Horn Lake (“the City) was incorporated in 1973. The City operates under the Board of Aldermen-Mayor
form of government and provides the foilowing services: public safety (police and fire), public works (streets and
sanitation), culture, recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

The financial staternents of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principtes

“GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the
accepted standard-selting body for establishing governmental ascounting and financial yeporting principles. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies.

Financial Reporting Entity
Thest financial statements present all the accounts of the City. There are no component units as defined by GASE
Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entily.

Basis of Presentaion

The City’s basie financial statements consist of povernment-wide statements, including a Statement of Net Position
and 2 Staterent of Activities, fund financial statements and accompanying note disclosures which provide a defailed
ievel of financial information. :

Government-wide Financial Jtatements:

The Statement of Net Position aud Statement of Activitles display information concerning the City as'a whole. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities arc
generally financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues and are reported
separately from business-type activities. Business-type activitles rely mainly on fees and charges for support. The
primary government is reported separately from certain legatly separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities and business-type
activities of the City at year-end. The Government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the City’s governmental activities and businsss-type
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of
the goods or services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requizements of a particular program. Taxes and other revenues not classified as program revenucs, are
presenied as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with
program revenues identifies the extent to which each business-type aclivity or governmental function is self~financing
or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial staterments of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be separate accounting
enfitics. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute irs assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into governmental and proprietary.
Major individua! Governmental Funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single columu,

Measurement Foeus and Basis of Accounting

The Government-wide and Propristary Funds financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accomnting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incwured or economic asset used, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
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CITY QF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPP
Notes to Financial Statements
Tor the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Property taxes ate recognized as revénue in thie year for which they are levied, Shared revenues are recognized when
the provider government recognizes the tiability to the City. Grants are recoghized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The revenues and expenses of Proprictary Funds are classified as operating or nonoperating. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a Proprietary Fund's primary operations. All
other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating.

Governmenta! financial statements are presented using a cuwrrent financial resources measuroment focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized i the accounting period when they are both
measutable and available to finance operations during the year or to liquidate liabilities existing at the ¢nd of the year.

Available means collected in the curvent period or within 60 days after year end to liquidate liabiities existing at the

end of the year. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estinate the amount. Expenditures are
recognized in the accounting period when the related fund habilitics are incurred. Debt service expenditures and
expenditures related 1o compensated absences and claims and judgemenls are recognized only when payment is due.
Property laxes, state appropriations and federal awards are all considered to be susceplible to accrual and have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.

The City reports the following major Goveriunenial Funds:

General Fund — This fund is used fo account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reparted in
another fund.

Debt Service Fund — This fund is used to account for resources accumulaled and used for the payment of long-ferm
debt principal interest and related costs.

The City repoits the following major Proprietary Fund:

Utility Fund - The Utility Fund is used fo account fof the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of the
City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the water and sewer system, as well
as billing and collection activities. The fund also accaunts for the accumutation of resources for, and the payment of,
long-term debt principal and interest for water and sewer debl. Ali cosls are financed through charges to utility
customers with rates reviewed and adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the funds.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Special Revenue Funds — These funds are used to account for- and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Projects Funds — These fuads are used (o account for and repost financial resources that are restricted,
committed, of assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities
and other capital assets.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Enterprise Funds = These funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterptises or where the City has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MI1SSISSIPPI
iNotes to Financinl Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

The City Charter establishes the fiscal year as the twelve-month period beginning October 1. The departments submit
te the City Clerk a budget of estimated expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year afler which the City Clerk sabmits a
budget of estimated expenditures and revenucs to the Mayor and Board of Alderman by August 1.

Upon receipt of the budget estimates, the Board of Aldermen holds a public hearing on the proposed budget.
Information aboul the budset ordinance is then published in the official newspaper of the City.

At the September board meeting. the budget is legally enacted through passage of ordinance. The City Clerk is
authorized 1o transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the
total expenditures of any fund must be appraved by the Board of Aldermen.

The actual receipts and disbursements are accumulated each month and compared to the budgeted amounts and
roviewed by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, Any revisions on the budget during the year are approved by the
Board of Aldermen.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, “cash and cash equivalenis” includes alt demand, savings accounts,
and certificates of deposits of the City. For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows, “cash and
cash equivalents” include aft demand and savings accounts, and cerlificates of deposit or shorl-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less,

Invesiments
The City’s investments consist of shares of commeon stock and property held for sale, The stock is valued at fajr
market value using quoted prices in an actively raded market.

Property Held for Sale
The property held for sale is carried at an amount equal to the property taxes uncollected a1 the time the City received
title to the property and limited (o appraised values as assessed by the local tax cellector.

Inventories and Prepaid Items.
Tnventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the frst-in/first-out method,

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to fature accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in
both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items, such as prepaid insurance, are not reparted for
governmental fund types since the costs of such items are accounted for as expenditures in the period of acquisition.

Interfund Transactions and Balances

Transactions between funds that are representative of short-jerm lending/borrowing arrangements and fransactons
that have nat resulted in the actual transfer of cash at the end of the fiscal year are referced to as “due to/from other
funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities ure eliminated in the
Statement of Net Position, Any outstanding balances between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the goverament-wide financial statements as “Infernal balances,”

Restricted Assets

Proprictary Fund assets required to be held and/or used as specified in bond indentures, bond resolutions, trustee
agreements, board resclutions and donor specifications have been reported as restricted assets.  When both restricted
and non-restricted assels are available for use, the poticy is lo use restricted assets first.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Capita] Asscts and Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide {inancial statemenis and in the fund
financial statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets ave valued at historical cost or estimated histerical cost if
actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date
donated,

Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line method, Bstimated useful lives and
capltatization thresholds of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows:

Capitalization Estimated

Thresholds o Useful Life
Land - N/A
Infrastructure - 20-50 vears
Buildings ' 50,000 40 years
Improvements other than buildings ' 25,060 20 years
Mobile equipment 5,000 5-10 years
Furniture and equipment 5,000 3-7 years
% *

Leased property under capital leases

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statiement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial siatement element, deferred outflows of FeSources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future petiod(s) and so will not be recognized as an ouwtflow of resources
{expense/expenditure) until then,

Deferred amount of refunding — For cutrent refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt
reported by governmental activities, business lype activities, and proprietary funds, the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is reported as a deferred ourflow of resources or a
deferred inflow of resources and recognized as a companent of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner
over the remaining life of the old debt or ihe life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.

Deferred outflows related o pensions — This amount reprasents the City’s propottionate share of the deferred outflows
of resources reported by the pension plan in which the Clity particlpates,

In addition to Habilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes repori a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial siatement clement, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(vevenue) untii that time.

Property tax for fulure reporting period/unavajlable revenue - property taxes — Deferred inflows of resources should
be reported when resources associated with imposed nonexchangs revenue transactions are received or reporied as a
receivable before the period for which property taxes are fevied.

Deferred inflows related to pensions — This amount represents the City’s proportionate share of the deferred inflows of
resources reported by the pension pian in which the City paiticipates.

Penslong

For purposes of measuring (he net pension Hability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, informaiion about the fiduciary net position. of the Public Emplovees’
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS) and additions fo/deductions from PERS® fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
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employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accardance with the benefit terms, Investments are
reporied at fair value.

Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities are the unmatured principal of bonds, loans, nofes or other forms of noncurrent or long-term
general obligation indebtedness. Long-lerm tabllities are not limited to labilities from debt issuances, but may also
include Habilities on lease-purchase agreements and other commitments.

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements, long-tern debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as labilities in the governmental activities or Proprietary Funds Statement of Net
Position,

Compensated Absences

The City has adopted a policy of compensation for accumulated unpaid employee personal leave. No payment is
authorized for aconied major medical leave, Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amevica
require accrual of accumulated unpaid employee benefits as long-term liabilitles in the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund financial statements. In fund financial statements, governmenta! funds report the
compensated absence liability payable only if the payable has matured, for example an emplayee resigns or retires.

Equity Classifications
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components;

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restrictéd capital assets, nel of accumulated
depreclation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings attributable to the
acquisition, construetion or improvement of those assets,

Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constrainls placed on the use either by external groups such as
creditors. grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or law through constitutional
provisions or enabling lepisiation.

Unrestricted net position - Al other net position not megting the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital
assets.”

Net Position Flow Assumption

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both resiicted and unrestricled (committed, assigned, or
unassigned; resources are available, it is the Ciiy's general policy 1o use restricted resources first, When expenses are
incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (commitied, assigned, and unassigned) resources are available, and
amounis in any of these restricted classifications could be used, it is the City's general policy to spend committed
resotrces first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts,

Fund Financial Statements:
Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which the government is bound 1o honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those

funds can be spent.

Government fund balansce is classified as nonspendable, restricted, commitied, assigned, or unassigned. The
following are descriptions of fimd classifications used by the City,
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Nonspendable find balance includes amounts that cannot be spent.  This includes amounts that are either not in a
spendable form (inventories. prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans/notes receivable, or property held for resale
unless the proceeds from the collection of those receivables or from the sale of those properties are resiricted,
committed or assigned) or amounts (hat are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as &
principal batance of a permanent fund,

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that have consiraints placed upon the use of the resources either by an
external party or imposed by taw through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Assigned find balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific purpose, but
are neither restricted nor committed, For governmental funds, other than the general fund, this is the residual amount
wlthin the Amd that is not classified as nonspendable and is neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund
balance are created by the Mayor pursuant o authorization established by the Board of Aldermen.

Unassigned fund balance is (he residual classification for the generai fund. This classification represents fund batance
that has not been_assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes
within the general fund. The gineral fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance
amiount. In other governmental funds if expenditures incwired for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted,
committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

When an expeaditure is incurred for purpoeses for which both restricted and unrestricted (commitied, assigned or
unassigned) resources are available, it is the City's general policy to use restricted resources first. When expenditures
are incurred for purposes -for which uniestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) resources are available, and
amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the City’s general policy to spend committed
resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts,

Property Tax Revenues

Resirictions associated with properly tax levies vary with the statutory authority. The amount of increase in certain
property taxes is limited by state law, Generally, this restriction provides that these tax Jevies shall produce no more
than 110% of the amount which resulted from the assessments of the previous year,

The Board of Aldermen, sach year at a meeting in September, levies property taxes for the ensuing fiscal year which
bogins on October |, Real property taxes become a Hen on January i of the current year, and personal property taxes
become a lien on Mareh | of the current year. Taxzes on both real and personal properly, however, are due on or
before February 1 of the next succeeding year. Taxes on motor vehicles and mobile homes that became a lien are due
in the menth that coincides with the month of the originat purchase.

Accounting principles generally aceepled in the United States of America require property taxes to be recognized af
the levy date if measurable and available, All property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are
levied, Motor vehicle and mobile bome taxes do not meet the measurability and collectability criteria for property tax
recognition because the lien and due date cannot be established until the dats the original purchase oceurs.

Lstimates

The process of preparing financial statements In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires the use of estimates and asswmpiions regarding certain types of assets, deferred
owtflows of resources, liabilites, deferred inflows of resources, revenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily
relate 1o unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingty, actual results may
differ from estimated amounts.
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Intergovernmental Reveaues in Governmental Fands

Intergovernmental revenues. consisting of grants. entillements and shared revenues, are usually recorded in
Governmental Funds when measurable and available. However, the “available” criterion applies for certain federal
grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made because expenditure is the prime factor for determining
eligibility. Similarly, if cost sharing or matching requirements exist. revenue recognition depends on compliance with
these requirements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Applications”. This statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting issues reiated Lo fair value measurements. The requirements of this
statement are effective for financial statements for periods begiming after June 15, 2015, The City s evaluating the
impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of aperations, or cash flows upon adoption.

n June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 73, “Accounting and Financial Reporling for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Statements 67 and 68", This statement wiil improve the usefulness of information for decisions made by the various
users of the general purpose external financial reports, The requirements of this statement are effective for financial
statements for perfods beginning after June 15, 2015, The City is evajuating the impact, if any, upon its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

fn June 2015. the GASB issued Staternent No. 74, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Bencfit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans™. This stalement will improve the usefulness of infermation about postemployment benefits other
than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPER) included in the general purpose external financial reports of
state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. The requirements of
this statement are effective Tor firiancial statements for periods beginning after June [3, 2016, The City Is svaluating
the itpact, if any, upon it¢ financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No, 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions™. This statement will Improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments
for posterployroent benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). The requirements of this
statement ave effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2017, The City is cvaluating the
impact, if any, upon its financial position, resulis of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No, 76, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepled Accounting Principles for
State and Local Govermments”, This statement will estabiish the hierarchy of GAAP for state and local governments.
The requirements of this statement ave effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015,
The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operatians, or cash flows upon
adoption.

In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, “Tax Abatement Disclosures™. This statement will improve
financial reporting by giving users of financial statements cssential information that is not consistently or
comprehensively reported 1o the public at present. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial
position, results of operations, or cash fiows upon adoption.

In December 2015, the GASE issued Statement No, 78, “Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer
Deflined Benefit Pension Plans”. This statement witl address a practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of
Statement No. 68. The requirements of this statement are effeclive for financial statements for periods beginning after

December 15, 2015, The Cily is evaluating the impact, if any. upon its financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows upon adoption,
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In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 79, “Certain External Investment Pools and Poot Participants”,
This statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among govermments by establishing specific criteria
used to determine whether a qualifying external investiment pool may elect 10 use an amartized cost exceplion to fair
value measurertent. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2015. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations, or
cash Aows upon adeption,

In January 2016, the GASB issued Siatement No. 80, “Blending Requirements for Certain Componenl Units-an
amendiment of GASB Statement No. 14", This statement will enhance the comparability of financial statements
amang govermments. The requirements of this statement are eFfective for financial statements for periods begianing
after June 15, 20 6. The City is evaluating the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operstions, or cash
flows upon adoption.

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. §i, “Irevocable Split-Interest Agreements”, This statement will
enhance the comparability of financial statements by providing accounting and reporting guidance for irrevocable
split-interest agreements in which government is a beneficiary. The requirements of this statement are effective for
financlal statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015, The City is evatuating the impact, if any, upon its
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows upon adoption.

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, “Pension [ssues”. This statement will improve financial reporting
by enhancing consistency i the application of financial reparting requirements to certain pension issues. The
requirements of this statement are effective for financial statgments for periods beginning after June 15, 2016, The
City is evaluating the impaet, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows upon adoption,

NOTE B - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A summary of significant fund equity adjustment is as Tollows:

Statement of Activitles:

Explanation
Govemmental
Activities
Record donation of property to City in 2012 $ 308,20_0

NOTE C - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The collaterai for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions are held in the name of the State Treasurer under a
program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5, Miss. Code Ann.
{1972). Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State
Treasurer. Financial institutions helding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those
deposits. In the event of failure of a financial instltution, securities piedged by that institution would be liquidated by

the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits rot covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC™).

Custodial credit risk is the tisk that in the event of a financial ipstitutions failure, the City’s deposits might not be
recovered. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State Treasurer

manages that risk on behalf of the City. As of September 30, 2016, the City’s bank balance was not exposed to
custodial credit risk.
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As of September 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was $3,202,469 and
the bank balances totaled $4.067.223. Deposits above FDIC coverage are coliateralized by the pledging financial
institutions trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer on behalf of the City.

NOTE D - INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of changes in investments;

Balance al Balance at
Inveslments Fund 9:30/2013 Addilions Deletions 30/2016
Capital Stock General $ 95,390 $ 8403 $ . $ 103,793
$ 95,390 $ 8403 $ - $ 103,793

The stock was donated and is carried at quoted market prices as of the balance sheet date. Cost basis is unknown,

NOTE E~ INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

Intergovernmental receivables consist of the following:

Governmental
Description Aclivities
Ad valorem $ 10,465
Grant Proceeds 42,463
Sales Tax 376,786
Tourism Tax 28,134
Totals $ 517,848

NOTE F~PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE
During 2013, five parcels of property were forfeited to the City due to taxes being delinquent for three years. The

parcels were recorded on the Statement of Net Position as property held for sate and valued at the accumulated
uscotlected taxes and limited to fair value as listed by the Desoto County Tax Assessor which is $982,591.
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NOTE G -CAPITAL ASSETS

The fotlowing is a summary of changes in capital assets:

Balance at Transiers / Balance at
U307 15 Additlons Delelions Adiustiments 0130/ 16
GOVERNMIENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital asgels, not being depreciated:
Land $ 3668471 8 97,000 & 67,000 % - % 3.0984H
Consiraction in progress 300,039 174,891 - - 474,930
Total capital asscts, nof being depreciated: 3968510 271,891 67,000 - 4.173.401
Capital assels, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 11,019,977 241,200 244,200 - 11,019,077
Fguipment and machinery 2,745,312 267,874 32,569 - 2,980,617
infrastructure 27,414,029 - - 27414029
Vehicles 4,991,028 247.850 93,004 - 3,145,874
Total capital assets, being dépreciated: 46,170,346 756,924 366,773 - 46,560,497
Less aceumuiated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (2.847,136) (284.874) - - (3,132,060)
Eguipinent and machineny (1.972.186) {177.163) 13,822 - (2.135,527)
Infrastructure {13.443,682) (750,056) - (14,193,738)
Vehicles (4.244.905) {172,089} 83,7105 ) (4,333,289)
Total aceumulnted depreciation (22,507,909 {1,384,182) 97,527 - (23,794,564)
‘Total capllal assels, being depreciated, net 23,662,437 (627,258) 269246 - 22,765,933
Covemmenial aclivities capital assels, net 5 27630947 % (355,367 % 336246  § - § 2693933
BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIHES
Capitatassels, nol being depreciated:
Land 3 28223 % - % - % - 3 28,225
Consiruction in progress 374,900 594,556 - {56,940 912,514
Total capital asscts, net being depreciated: 403,125 594,556 - (56.942) 940,739
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 151,001 - . - 151,001
Equipment and machinery 333.007 - . - 333,007
Infrastructure 20,142,993 56,942 - - 20,199,935
Vehicles 56,1214 - - - 56,121
Tolalcapitat assets, being depreciated: 20,683,122 56,942 - - 20,740,064
Less secumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (41,585) {2,830} - - (44,435}
Fuipment and machinery (309449 {2,298} - - (311,740
Infrastruclure (8,528,890 (660,381 - - (9,189,479
Velticles (50,510 - - - (50,510
Total accumulated depreciation {8.930,43%) (665.730) - - (9,596,164)
Total capital asscts, being depreciated, net 11,752,688 (608,788) - - 14,143,900
Business-type activitics capital assets, net $ 12,155813 & {14232) % ) - § (56,942) § 12084639

No inferest was capitalized during the year due to immateriality.
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Depreciation was charged lo functions of the City as foilows:

Covernmental Activities Depreciation Business Type Activities Depreciation
Function Expense Function Expense
Genera] Government $ 182,331 Utitity $ 665,730
Public Safety 368,208
Public Works 619332
Culture and Recreation 214,221
Total depreclation expense  $ 1,384,183 Tolal depreciation Fxpense  § 665,730

Commitments under construction condracts at September 30, 2016 are summarized as follows:

Contrmact Remaining
Projeui Amount Balance Fund
Tulane Road Connector $ 382,256 $ 12,079  CGeneral Fund
Apple Creck Pmergency Watershed Project 127,350 127350 General Fund
Twin Lakes Water lmprovements 1,418,564 908,071  Utility
Tolal § 1928170 $ 1,047,500

NOTE H ~OPERATING LEASES

The city receives income from the Newly Weds Foods, Ine. rail spur it leases under a noncanceilable operating lease.
Total income from this lease was $20,904, The futuie minimum lease receivables for this fease are as follows:

Year(s)
Ending
September 30 Amount
207§ 20,904
2018 20,904
2019 20,904
2020 20,904
2021 20,904
2022-2026 104,520
20272001 36,588

245,628

NOTE I - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions are for the payment of monthly claims, and te provide funds for debt service and capital outlay.
All transfers wers routine and consistent with the activities of the fund, The following is a summary of interfund
transactions as of September 30, 2016:

Trasfers In Transfers Out
Major funds:
CGeneral Fund b 400,000 & 340,135
Deb{ Service Fund 340,135 -
Utility Fund - 400,000
Total funds $ 740,135 $ 740,135
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Due From Due To
Major funds:
General Fund $ - $ 322,438
Debit Servios Fund 560,702 -
Utility Fund - 238,204
Totat funds $ 560,702 3 560,702

NOTE J - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-fern debt activity for the year ended Septeraber 30, 2016 was as follows:

Amounts
Balance af Balance at Due Within
9/30/15 Additions Deletions 9/30/16 One Year
Governmental activities:
General abligation bonds payable $ 12,920,000 b - 3 740000 $ 12,180,000 $ 1,395.000
Special obligation bonds payable 4,590,000 610,000 3,980,000 625,000
Loans payable 1,766,532 1,520,904 245,628 20,904
Leases payable 574,017 560,159 345,827 788,349 380,519
Bond preminm 162,977 24,329 138,618 -
Bond discount (38,264) 5,466 - (32,798) -
Deferred loss {448,507) 60,795 - (387,712) -
Compensated absences payable 289,613 - 8,783 280,830 -
Covernmental activities long-term Habilities  § 19,816,368 i 626,420 $ 3,249,843 $ 17,192915 $ 2421423
Business-lype activities:
Special obligation bonds payable % 10,670,000  § 2,695,000 $ 2,930,000 $ 10,415,000 $ 555000
Loans payabie 1,990,356 583,596 301,634 2,372,318 206,237
Bond premium 210,195 - 104,922 105,273
Deferred loss (394,208) (45,933) (348,335} -
Compensated absences payable 36017 - 3,000 33,117 -
Business-lype activities leng-term liabilities $ 12512400 3 3,278,596 53,213,623 3 12,577.373 3 761,237

The City has pledged special assessment taxes levied against certaln properties to service a portion of the $7,120,000 GO
bonds issued during fiscal year 2013, The levy will continue through tax year 2019 and is expected to generate an average

of $67,500 in taxes per vear,
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General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge full faith and credit of the City. General obligation bonds
outstanding as of September 30, 2016 are as follows:

Interest lsswe Maturity Amousis
Description Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding
2008 3.25%-4.63% 4/1/2008 471/2023 $  4.410,000 $ 2,505,000
2008 2.75%-5.00% 117172008 11/142028 4,500,000 193,000
20011 2.00%-3.125% 124157201} 81:2024 3,395,000 2,360,000
2015 2.00%-3.125% 572872015 11/1/3028 7,120,000 7,120,000
Toial General Obligation Bonds , $ 19,425,000 $12,180,000

Special obligation bonds are issued by the Mississippi Development Bank under the Mississippi Development Bank
Adt, tlie proceeds of which are used to loan inoney to the City pursuant fo a loan agreement hetween the City and the
Bank {or its assignee) and secured by a promissory note. The note will never constitute a general obligation of the
City, and neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged. however a tax intercept
agreement secures the note payments. Special obligation bonds cutstanding al year end are as follows:

hiterest Issue Maturity Amounis
Description Rate Date Date Issued Qutstanding
2012 Speciat Obligation )
Recraation Facifity Refunding 2.0%-30%  3/28/2012 10/1/2021 5 5185000 $ 3,980,000
Total Special Obligation Bonds $ 5185000 0§ 3,980,000

The City issues revenue bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquived or conslrucled assets to pay
debt service. Revenue bonds ouistanding at year end are as follows;

Interest Issue Maturity Amounts

Description Rats Date Date Issued Qutstanding
2005 Special Obligation .

Refunding 2.4%-3.0% 6/ 172006 127172030 312,750,000 % 430,000
2014 Special Obligation

Refinding 2.0%:-3.5% 792014 107142027 7,320,000 7,320,000
2015 Special Obligation

Refundlng 3.00%-3.25%  10/29/2015 12/1/2030 2,693,000 2,665,000
Total Revenue Bonds $ 22,765000  § 10415000
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The City uses loans to finance its projects. Loans outstanding al year end are as follows:

Interest [ssue Maturity Amounts
. Description Rare Date Date Issued Outstanding
Genoral
MDA Railroad Spur 0.00% 8172013 114172020 $ 313,568 5 245,628
Total Loans § 313,568 $§ 245628
Interest Issue Maturity Amounts
Description Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding
Enterprise
Drinking Water System
Improvements Revolving Loan 4,00% 37172004 11/1/2020 $ 1,509,556 $ 425315
Drinking Water System
improvements Revolving Loan 3.50% 13413/2002 10/2/2023 773901 340,412
Cap Loan (Water Treatment Plant} 2.00% 1172072002 10/2/2023 476,333 261,484
Cap Loan (Water Treatment Plant) 3.00% 2/1£2005 10/1/2027 587,505 370,111
Cap Loan {Allen Subdivision
Sewer Improvement 2.00% G 272012 21172033 367,350 340,749
Cap Loan (Twin Lakes Sewer
improvement 2.00% 27172005 2/172035 634,247 634,247
Total Loans $ 4349292 $ 2,372,318

The aggrogate maturities of general obligation, special assessment bonds, revenue bonds and loans for the years
subsequent to September 30, 2016 are as.follows:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Special Oblipation Bonds Loans

Sepientser 30 Principal nlerest Principal Interest Principal Inferest

2017 $ 1395000 § 422,644 B 623,000 § 89,862 $ 20,904 3 -
2018 1,575,000 311537 635,000 77,262 20,904 .
2019 1,625,000 271,807 650,000 64,412 20,904 -
2020 1,670,000 230,256 670,000 49,956 20,904 -
2021 1,715,000 185,525 690,000 31,650 20,904 -
20222026 3,235,000 383,619 10,000 10,650 104,520 -
20272031 965,000 61,625 - - 36,588 -
Total $ 2,180,000 & 1,867,013 $ 3980,000 § 323,792 b 245,628 § -
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Business Type Activities:

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Loans

September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2017 h 555,000 § 300,044 $ 206,237 % 49,423
2018 360,000 290,744 239,906 54,474
2049 600,000 273,344 240,766 46,017
2020 610,000 258,194 255,940 39,110
2024 625,000 245,744 176,420 30,852
2022-2026 3,420,000 932,613 658,096 100,401
2027-2031 4,045,000 329,390 312,964 42,648
2032-2036 214,458 14,751
2037-204 66,562 1,197

$ 10415000 § 2,639,073 $ 2372318 § 379,473

Future minimum capital lease payments and the net present value of these minimum Jease payments as of
September 30, 2016 is as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities

September 30 Principal  Interest
2017 % 374,719 % 15,885
2018 168,159 8.684
2019 165,496 3158
2020 79,976 1,600

$ 788,350 % 29324

Advance refunding — On October 29, 2015, the City issued $2,695,000 in ‘Water and Sewer System Rovenue
Refunding Bends with an average interest rate of 3.00% to advance refund $2,510,000 of the 2005 Special Obligation
Water & Sewer Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 5.00%.

The bonds had 2 total cutstanding batance of $3,350,000 at the time of refunding, but only $2,510,000 of the 2005
bonds was refunded.

The net proceeds of $2,566,475 (afier payment of $128,525 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used
to purchase US government securities, Those securities were deposited in an frrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
pravide for a portion of future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, those bonds are consldered to be
defeased, and the Hability for those bonds has been removed from the Stalement of Net Position.

The City advance refunded the above bonds te reduce iis (otal debt service payment over the next 15 years by almost
$325,495 and to obtain an economic gain {difference belween the present values of the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) of $259.971.

Legal Debt Margin. The City is subject to the limitations of indebtedness prescribed by Section 21-33-303, Miss.
Code Ann. (1972), No municipality may issue bonds secured by a pledge of its full faith and credit in an amount
which, when added to the then outstanding bond indebtedness of such municipality, would exceed the 15% and 20%
tests prescribed in Section 21-33-303. These percentages are appiied to the assessed value of the taxable property
within such municipality, with certain types of bond issues being excluded from the authorized debt limit tests.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPL
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Presented in the schedule below are the calculations of the applicable statutory debt Jimitations and the resuiting
margin for further debt in the amount of $11,207,690 (the smaller of the two computed margins) as of September 30,
2016,

15% Test 20% Test
Net Assessed Value as of September 30, 2016
[$145,917,936 times applicable percentage) $ 23.387.690 $ 31,183,587
Present debt subject to debt Hmit as of September 30, 2015
Totaibondz owtstanding (exclude proprietary) {12,180,000) {12,180,000)
Margin for additional debt $ 11,207,690 $ 19,003,587

NOTE K — DEFINED BENEFIT FENSION PLAN

General Information aboul the Pension Plan

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of Missjssippi (PERS), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by
state Jaw and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature, PERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That information miy be obtained
by writing-to Public Employees’ Refirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-
1005 or by calling [-800-444 PERS,

Benefits Provided. Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hiving for qualifying employees
and officials of the State of Mississippi, state universities, community and junior colieges, and teachers and employses
of the public school districis. For those persons employed by political subdivisions and instrumentalities of the State
of Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity’s participation in PERS by the PERS’ Board of
Trustees. 1f approved, membership for the entity’s employees is a condition of employment and eligibility is granted
to those who qualify upon hiring. Participating members who are vested and retire at or after age 60 or those who
retive regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of creditable service for employees who
became members of PERS before July 1. 201 1) are entitied, upon application, to an annual retirement ailowance
payabte monthiy for life in an amount equal 10 2,0 percent of their average compensation for each year of creditable
service up to and including 30 years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2.5
percent for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of
creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below 65, whichever is less.
Average compensation is the average of the employee’s earings during the four highest compensaied ycars of
creditable service. Bencfits vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four years of membership
service for those who became members of PERS before July I, 2007). PERS also provides certain death and. disability
benefils. A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The COLA is
equal to 3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which
the retired member reaches age 60 {53 for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), with 3,0 percent
compounded for each fiscal year therealter. Plan provisions are eslablished and may be amended only by the Staie of
Mississippi Legisfature.

Contributions. At September 30, 2016, PERS members were required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary,
and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate, The employer’s rate at September 30, 2016 was
15.75% of annual covered payroll, The contribution requirements of PERS members and employers ave established
and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The City's contributions (employer share only) to
PERS for the vears ending September 30, 2018, 2015 and 2014 were $1,241.388, $1,237,471. and $1,256,451,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.
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Pension Liahilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Oulflows of Resovrces and Deferved Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions .

At September 30, 2016, the City reported a liability of 521,434,996 for its proportionate share of the net peusion
Jiability. The net pension lability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension lability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of thal date. The City’s propartion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection the City's long-term share of contribution to the pension plan relative to
projected contributions of all participating entities. actuariaily determined. AlJune 30, 20106, the City’s proportion was
.1200 percent, as opposed to its proporlion of .]263 percent measured as of June 30, 2013,

Por the year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $1,938,216. Al September 30, 2016,
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related o pensions from the

folowing sources:

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resuurces of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experiense hS 543,904 § -
Changes of assumptions 1,065.227 56,960
et difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investiments 2,551,920 -
Changes in the City's proportion and differences

between the City's contributions and proportionate

share of contributions - 2,064,780
City contributions subsequent to the measurement

date 313,649 -
Total $ 44714700  § 2,121,740

$313,649 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions subsequent
to the measurement date witl be recognized as a reduction of the net pension Jiability in the year ending September 30,
2017. Other amounts reporled as deferred outflows of reseurces and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending September 30 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Total
2017 g 1,582,029 $ (975, 711) b3 606,258
2018 1,377,640 (86,398) 1,291,042
2019 777,929 {(280,051) 497,878
2020 423,453 - 423,453
§ 4,161,051 5 (1,342,420) $ 2,818,631

Actuarizl Assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00 percenl
Salary Increases 3,75 — 19.00 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, includiag inflation
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Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table Projected with Scale BB to 2016,
with males rates set forward one year.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2014. The experience repott is dated May 4, 2015,

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected nominal returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of retwrn by the
target asset allocation percentage end by adding expected inflation. The target assct ailocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of refurn for each major asset class as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

. Target Espected Real
Assetl Class, Aliccation Rate of Return
U.S. Broad 34.0% 5.2%
International Equity 19.0% 5.0%
Emerging Markets Equity 3.0% 5.5%
Fhed Iicome Read Assets 20.0% 0.3%
Rea Assets 10.0% 4.0%
Private Bquity 8.0% 6.2%
Cash 1.0%% -0.5%

Total . 100.0%

Discouni Rate. The discaunt rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determins the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate (9.00%) and that employer contributions wiil be made at the current employer contribution rate
(15.75%). Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to ali periods of projected benefit payments te determine the total pension
linbiiily.

Sensitivity_of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabifity to Changes in the Discount Rate. The
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability caloulated using the discount rate of 7.75
percent, as well as what the City’s proportionale share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discourif rate that is 1- percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) ot 1- percentage point higher (8.75 percent) than the
cutrent rate,

1% Discaunt i%
Decrease Rate Increass
6.75% 7.75% 8.75%

City's proportionate share of the net pension fiability $ 27484471 § 21,434,996 5 16,415,893

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued PERS financial report.

NOTE L~ RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natura) disasters. This exposwre is coversd by purchase of commercial insurance.
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NOTE M — CONTINGENCIES

Federal Granis - The city has received federal granis for specific purposes that are snbiect to audit by the grantor
agencies. Entitlements to these resources are generally conditional upon compliance with the terrs and conditions of
grant agreements and applicable federal regulations. including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes.
Any disailowance resulting from a granior audit may become a tiability of the city. Na provision for any liability that
may result has been recognized in the City’s financial statements,

Litigation — The city is party to legal proceedings, many of which oceur in the normal course of governmental
operations. It is not possible at the present time fo estimate ultimate outcome or liability, if any, of the city with

respect to the various proceedings. The city has a reasonably possible loss contingency of $479,403 relating to a 2008
tax sale. .

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that cccur after the Statement of Net Position date but before the financial statements are avaitable to be issued
must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about
conditions that existed at the Statement of Net Position date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements.
Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the Statement of Net Position date
require disclosure in the accompanying riotes. Management of the City of Horn Lake evaluated the activity of the city
through August 11, 2017, the date the financial statements were available 1o be issued, and determined that the
following subsequent events have occurred that require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

On December 6, 2016, the City approved lease purchase financing of a fire truck and related equipment with F irst
Commercial Bank for $787,795.
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REVENUES
General propeiiy taxes
Franchise Tax
Licenses and permits
Infergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General govermment
Public safety
Public.works
Culture ang recieation
Eronomic Development
Debt Service

Tatal expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenucs
Over (Under) Expendilures
Other Finaneing Sources {Uses}

Grant Revenue

Interfund Trnsfer

Sale of Assels

[ease Proceeds
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance - Bepinning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

Adjustments 1o conform with GAAT:
Revenues

Expenditutes

Fund Balanee - End of Year {GA AP basis}

CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Yariance with
Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budget
3 9417000 % ST TERYA S § 0.358,633 (58,367)
730,500 730,500 680.360 {30,140)
212,11 212,100 204,004 (8.000)
492,500 272076 37504 75,428
2,184,000 2,184,000 1,833,391 (350,609)
1,199,000 1,199,000 1,160,600 (38,400)
3,000 3,000 4,601 1,601
403,805 373,776 562,353 184,577
14,641,905 14,395.432 14,151,443 {244,009)
2,718,250 2854475 2,692,758 101,717
9,190,430 9,566,307 8,863,087 03,220
2,259,800 2,321,365 2,186,775 134,590
1,054,220 1,034,220 826,053 228,167
200,500 205,860 206,766 (306}
380305 382,205 382202 366,734
15,803,305 16,384,432 15,157,641 §,593,522
(1.}061,600) { 1.988.980) £1,006,198) 1,349,513
G 0 306,756 306,756
940,000 1,025,500 59,865 (965,635}
17.600 17,600 197,729 180,129
204,000 514,617 579,321 64,704
1.161,600 1557717 1.143.671 (720,802)
$ - $ (431.263) 3% 137473 628,711
435,071
572,544
(28,707)
{13,869)
5 529,968

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Basis of Presentation

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legaily adopted budget, the final legally adopted amounts on a
budgetary basis and variances between the final budget and the actual amounts. The schedule is presented for the General
Fund. The Budpetary Comparison Schedule is part of required suppiementary information.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPP1
Schedule of City’s Proportionate Shave of Net Pension Liability
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

East 10 Fiscal Yenrs®

2016 2015
City's proportion of the net pension ligbility 0.1200% 0.1265%

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability § 2143499 § 19,554,406
City's covered employee payrol) $  7.881,829 § 7902200

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 7
as a percentage of its covered employes payroll 271.85% 247.46%

Plan fiduciary nel position as a percenfage of the
total pension liability 5747% 61.70%

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedute.
*T'he amounts presented for each year were determined as of June 30™ of the year prior to the fiscal year presented.
The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to shiow information for 10 years, However, GASB No. 68 was

implemented in the fiscal year ended September 30,2016, and, untii a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City has only
presented information for the years in which information is avatlatile,
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPI
Sehedule of City’s Confributions
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Last 10 Fiscal Years®

2016 2013

Contractually required contribution $  L241,388 $ 1237471
Conirbutions in relation to the contractually

required conlribution $ 1,241,338 $ 1,235,977
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - 5 },494
City's coverad - employee payroll § 7881829 § 7,856,961
Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 15.75% 15.75%

The notes o the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB Na. 68 was
implemented in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, and, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City has only
presented information for the years in which information is available.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPi
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
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Pension Schedules
(1 Change of Benefit Terms
Effective July 1, 2016, the interesi rate on employee contributions shall be calculated based on the money

market rate as published by the Wali Street Jowrnal on December 31 of each preceding year with a minimum
rate of one percent and a maxbmum rate of five percent.

(2} Change of Assumpiions

The assumed rale of interest credited to emplayee contributions was changed from 3.5% to 2.00%.
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIFPI
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Federal Gantor Federal
Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Passg-through
Program Title Number Number

US Department of Trans portation
Passed through Mississippi Depriment of Public Safety

: Qccuipant Protection Incentive Grants 20,602 I15-PT-218-1
Aleohol Opern Container Requirements 20,607 }5-8T-218-1
Passed (hrough Mississippt Deprtment of Transportation
. Highway Planning and Construction 20.203 STP-0017-06(037)
Passed through Mississippi Depriment of Transpertation
Highway Planning and Construction 20,205 STP-9227-00(008)

" Total US Depariment of Transportation

Environmental Protection Agency
a Passed through Mississippi Department of Health
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66,468 DW {-L.170022-03-0

Total Environimental Protection Agency
US Department of Agriculture

Passed through Mississippi Natural Resources Conservation Service
8 Emergency Watershed Protection [0.923 68-4423-16-241

Total US Department of Agricuiture

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule:

Federal

Expenditures

$ 21,282
120,044

101,466

19,995

262,787

532,946

532,946

11,243
11,243

§ 806,976

e

|, The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards incluces the federal grant activity of the City and is
presenied on the same basis of accounting and the same significant accounting policies, as applicable, as those used for the

financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Titl

e 2 1.8, Code of

Federal Regulations part 200, Uniform Administralive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federat
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB
Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.5.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for

" Federal Awards, wherein certaih types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to relmbursement. Bevause the
schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial

position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the City.

2. The City did not efect (o use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

&
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CITY OF HORN LAKY, MISSISSIPPL
Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

s

Name Position Company Amount
Allen Latimer Mayor Fidelity $ 75000
JimRobinson City Clerk Fidelity 50,000
Tara Watren Court Clerk Fidelity 50,000
Darry! Whaley Pelice Chiet Fidelity 54,000
Arnanne Linville Human Resources Director Fidelity 50,060
Danny Smith Animal Shelter Director Fidelity 50,000
Julie Valsamis Accounting Clerk Traveler's 50,000

Aldermen {each) Fidelity 100,000
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F.O. GIVENS & COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCQUNTANTS

212 SOUTH WARD ST. SENATOBIA, MS 38668 PHONE 662/562-6721
5699 GETWELL ROAD, BUILDING E, SUITE 5 SOUTHAVEN, MS 38672  PHONE 662/34%-3788

FRANK O. GIVENS, 111 W, BUFORD GIVENS
Certificd Public Accountani Y Certified Public Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Horn Lake, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing slandards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standazds applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
Genera! of the United States, the financial staternents of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Horn Lake, Mississippi, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Cigy
of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August |1, 2017,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statcments, we considered City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s
internal conirol over financial reporting (internat conirol) to determine the audit procedures thai are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivenecss of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opittion on the effectiveness of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a limely basis. A maferief weakness is a deficiency, or a combinafion of deficiencies, in internal
contra! such that thers is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented. or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deflciency is a deficiency. or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
netit attention by those charged with governance,

Our conshderation of internal control was for the limited purpose descfibed in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencics.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist and not be identified.

Complianee and Gther Matters

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance aboutl whether the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our

tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be veporied under Government
Auditing Standards,
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

AT 4 , _ i b
¥e. Yveussrd (o

F. O. Givens & Company
Senatobia, Mississippi
August 11,2017



F.O. GIVENS & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

212 SOUTH WARD ST. SENATOBIA, MS 38668 PHONE 662/562-6721
5669 GETWELL RCAD, BUILDING E, SUITE 6 SOUTHAVEN, M3 38672  PHONE G62/348-3798

FRANK O. GIVENS, il W. BUPORD GIVENS

Certified Public Accountant Cartified Public Accountan:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Mavor and Board of Aldermen
City of Horn Lake, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have andited the City of Homn Lake, Mississippi’s campliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2016, City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedute of findings and questioned costs.

Marnngenent’s Responxibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and condifions of its federal awards
appticable 1o its federal programs.

Anditor's Responsibility

Our respensibility is fo express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred lo abave. We conducted our audit of compliance
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Qoveinment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requitements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Andit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we
ptan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examiring, on & tesl basis, evidence about the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi’s compliance with those requirements
and performing such other pracedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Wa believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for owr opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However,
our audit-does not provide a legal determination of the City of Hom Lake, Mississippi’s compliance.

Opinion en Each Major Federal Progrant
In our opinion, the City of Hom Lake, Mississippt, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referied to above that coutd have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the vear

ended September 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

‘Management of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control

over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In pianning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi’s internal confrol over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program (o determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for gach major federal
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program and to test and feport on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpese of expressing an opinion on the offectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effecliveness of the City of Horn Lake, Mississippi's internal controi over compliance.

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compilance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremient of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in Internal
conirof over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal confrol over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controf over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compiiance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compiiance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control-over compliance that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficicncies, We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that esting based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

) ) :
PO Baknke] G
F.O, Givens & Co.

Senatobia, Mississippi

Auguse 11,2017
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F.O. GIVENS & COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

212 SOUTH WARD ST, SENATOBIA, M3 38668 PHONE 662/582-6721
5699 GETWELL ROAD, BUILDING E, SUITE 5 SOUTHAVEN, MS 38672  PHONE 563/349-3708

FRANK Q. GIVENS, 11 W. BUFORD GIVENS
Cenlified Public Accountan! Certified Public Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE COMPLIANCE
WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Horn Lake, Mississippi

We have audited the basic financial slaiements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Horn Lake, M ississippi (“the City™), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2016, and have issued our report dated August 11, 2017. We conducted our audit in accordance with anditing
standards generally accepted In the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the
Government Auditing Standard, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America,

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we have also performed
progedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state
faws and regulalions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do nat express such an opinion.

The results of those procedures performed to test compliance with certain other state laws and regulations and our audit of the
financial statements disclosed the following instance of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. Our finding and
recommendation and your response is as follows:

Finding ) o , . -
MS Code Section 21-33-29 Fequises that the budget adopted by the Municipality be a balanced budget. While the origina
budget adopted by the City was balanced, the final budget was not in balance. Budgeted expenses excesded budgeted revenues
by $431,263.

Recommendation
The City should ensure the final budget is balanced.

Response

The original budget adopled by the City was balanced. Budget amendments were also balanced; however, there was an error in
posting a budget amendment into the software whereby the budget amendment posted only one side of the budget amendment
entry, resulting in understatement of budgeted revenues, The City wilt be diligent in reviewing ail posted budget amendment
entries to ensure that the budpet remains in balance.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the C ity's management, federal awarding agencies the Office of
the State Auditor and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyons other than these
specitied parties. However, this report is a matter of pubilic record and its distribution is not limited,
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Senatobia, Mississippi

August i1, 2017
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CITY OF HORN LAKE, MISSISSIPPT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Section I Summary of Auditor’s Resulls

Financial Statements:

1. Type of auditor’s report issued on the financial statements: Unimodified

2. Internal Control over financial reporting:

& Material weaknesses identified? No

b, Significant déficiency identified that are not considered
10 be material weaknesses? None Reported

3. Noncotipliance material to the financial statements noted: No

4. internal control aver major federal Programs:

a.  Material weakness(es) identified? No
b, Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported
5. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Uninodified

6. Any audit finding(s) disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
With Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133% No

7. identification of major federal programs;

a. 66,468 Environmental Protection Agency

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: . $750.00¢

9. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee; No

Section 2: Financial Staternent Findines

‘The results of our tests did not disclose any findings related to the financial staiements that are required to be reporied by
Government Auditing Standards.

Section 3: Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The resuls of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs relaled to federal awards.



